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DATE:  December 23, 2020 
 
TO:  Jarrett Skorup 
        Director of Marketing and Communications 
        Mackinac Center for Public Policy 
        skorup@mackinac.org 
                                                                                                                              
FROM:  Rebecca Nelson, Director and Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Officer 
              Michigan State University FOIA Office   
 
SUBJECT:  FOIA Response 
 
On June 26, 2020, you emailed to this Office your expansive FOIA request for “Any emails to or from 
the president of Michigan State University that mention ‘Hsu’ from Feb. 1, 2020 to June 26, 2020.”  
On July 7th, we sent to you a notice advising that significant labor would be involved in processing 
your request, and that a fee deposit would be required to proceed.  On July 20th, this Office received 
your fee deposit.  On August 31st, we sent to you a letter advising that records identified as 
responsive to your request were significantly greater in volume than originally anticipated; that 
significantly greater labor would be involved in processing those records; that an additional fee 
deposit would be required to proceed; and that we anticipated responding on or before eight weeks 
from the date the additional deposit was received.  That response date was estimated in compliance 
with Section 4(8) of the Michigan Freedom of Information Act (MIFOIA), which provides that 
“The response must also contain a best efforts estimate by the public body regarding the time frame 
it will take the public body to comply with the law in providing the public records to the requestor. 
The time frame estimate is nonbinding upon the public body, but the public body shall provide the 
estimate in good faith and strive to be reasonably accurate and to provide the public records in a 
manner based on this state’s public policy under section 1 and the nature of the request in the 
particular instance.”  
 
On September 9th, this Office received your additional fee deposit.  On November 4th, eight weeks 
from the date we received your additional deposit, we wrote to you that while your request was 
granted to the extent information is not exempt from public disclosure, processing times were 
extending beyond typically anticipated dates due to current alternate working arrangements 
necessitated by extraordinary community health concerns.  We also advised that we expected to 
respond to you with records on or before December 4th.  On December 4th, we wrote to you that we 
were continuing to process your request as expeditiously as possible; that for the same reasons 
stated in our November 4th letter, additional time was required; that we expected to respond to you 
with records on or before December 23rd; and that in consideration of the unavoidable inconvenience 
the delay was causing, a fee adjustment would be made.  Accordingly, we write to you the following 
response. 
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Records responsive to your request accompany this letter.  Identifying information pertaining to 
certain individuals, personal email addresses, personal cellular telephone numbers, and certain other 
personal data have been redacted, and five (5) pages of personal information have been withheld 
pursuant to one or both of Sections 13(1)(a) and 13(2) of the MIFOIA.  Section 13(1)(a) provides for 
the withholding of “Information of a personal nature if public disclosure of the information would 
constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of an individual's privacy."  Section 13(2) requires the 
withholding of information that, if released, would prevent the public body from complying with 20 
U.S.C. 1232g, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).  Nine (9) pages consisting 
of personal information pertaining to a student have been withheld under one or more of 
Sections 13(1)(a), (b)(iii), and 13(2).  Section 13(1)(b) provides for the withholding of “Investigating 
records compiled for law enforcement purposes, but only to the extent that disclosure as a public 
record would do any of the following...(iii) Constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy." 
University signatures, email addresses, netIDs, and a telephone number have been redacted under 
one or more of Sections 13(1)(u), (y), and (z), which allow for the withholding of information related 
to the ongoing security of a public body.  Certain other information has been redacted under one or 
more of Sections 13(1)(g), (h), and (m).  Sections 13(1)(g) and (h) provide for the withholding of 
information or records subject to the attorney-client privilege and attorney work-product doctrine, 
respectively.  Section 13(1)(m) provides for the withholding of “Communications and notes within a 
public body or between public bodies of an advisory nature to the extent that they cover other than 
purely factual materials and are preliminary to a final agency determination of policy or action.”  
Lastly, nine (9) pages have been withheld under Sections 13(1)(g) and/or (h).   
 
The MIFOIA provides that when a public body denies all or a portion of a request, the requester may 
do one of the following: (1) submit an appeal of the determination to the head of the public body; or 
(2) commence a civil action in the court of claims to compel the public body’s disclosure of the 
records.  If you wish to seek judicial review of any denial, you must do so within 180 days of the date 
of this letter.  If the court of claims orders disclosure of all or a portion of the public record(s) to which 
you have been denied access, you may receive attorneys’ fees and, in certain circumstances, 
damages under the MIFOIA.  Should you choose to file an appeal with the University regarding this 
response to your request, you must submit a written communication to this Office expressly stating 
that it is an “appeal” of this response.  In your appeal, please state what records you believe should 
have been disclosed to you.  You must also state the reasons you believe any denial of your MIFOIA 
request should be reversed. This Office will arrange for the processing and review of your appeal. 
 
In processing your request, a significant amount of labor was required to search for, gather, and 
review the responsive records to separate information exempt from disclosure from that which is not 
exempt.  Nevertheless, in consideration of the previously noted unavoidable delay in providing the 
attached records to you, fees for processing your request are hereby waived.  Your fee deposit 
checks will be returned to you via U.S. first class mail.  Pursuant to Section 4(4) of the MIFOIA, the 
University’s procedures and guidelines for processing MIFOIA requests can be found at 
http://foia.msu.edu. 
 
Attachments 
MSUF035320 




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































